
 

 
1 

 

 

Nelson County Joint Planning Commission/Board of Supervisors 
Meeting Minutes 
January 18th, 2023 

 
Present:  Board of Supervisors: Jesse Rutherford, David Parr, Thomas Harvey, and Ernie Reed - 
Planning Commission: Chair Mary Kathryn Allen and Commissioners Mike Harman, Phil Proulx and 
Robin Hauschner 

Staff Present: Candy McGarry, County Administrator and Deputy Clerk Amanda Spivey - Dylan Bishop, 
Director and Emily Hjulstrom, Planner/Secretary 

Call to Order:  Mr. Rutherford and Ms. Allen called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM in the Old Board 
of Supervisors Meeting Room, County Courthouse, Lovingston.  

Ms. Redfearn presented the following information: 



 

 
2 

 



 

 
3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
4 

 

Ms. Redfearn and Mr. Russo presented the draft of Chapter 2: 

 

 

Mr. Hauschner asked if the Berkley Group has alternative models for the population growth trend. Ms. 
Redfearn explained that the Weldon Cooper Center at UVA generated the official population projections 
for the State of Virginia, including the County of Nelson. Mr. Musso explained that beyond Weldon 



 

 
5 

 

Cooper Center they use the U.S. Decennial Census and ACS. Ms. Redfearn added that any programs 
looking at population projections are going to be using Weldon Cooper Center data.  

Mr. Rutherford noted that they are seeing a huge population block (age 65-69) shown on page 14. He 
asked how the Largest Age Group would project into the future. He explained that it looks like the 
community will become an aged community. Ms. Redfearn explained that the purpose of the profile is 
to help identify the key issues and opportunities with one of the key trends identified being an aging 
population.  

Mr. Reed noted that the text in the document tends to take a negative stance. He suggested that the 
information shouldn’t be weighted either way.  

Mr. Hauschner asked if they have projection numbers for the specific age groups. Mr. Russo noted that 
this is something he would need to look into. Mr. Rutherford added that it would be critical to know the 
organic trend. Mr. Hauschner noted that it would be valuable to know how the rate of the working age 
population changes.  

Ms. Allen added that the median age is not consistent throughout the County. She questioned how to 
set up infrastructure to match demographics. Mr. Rutherford added that land is cheap where they find 
the younger demographics. Ms. Redfearn noted that the densest and oldest population surrounds 
Wintergreen. Mr. Rutherford asked if the rate of residents with a bachelor’s degree is considered a high 
number. Ms. Redfearn noted that the state average is 28% and Nelson County is 31%. 

Mr. Rutherford asked where they got the median home values information. Mr. Musso explained that 
it’s from the census. Mr. Rutherford recommended that they look at the data from Lynchburg and 
Charlottesville MLS. Mr. Musso noted that things have changed dramatically since the census data was 
gathered. 

Ms. Redfearn noted that the issue with a lot of the data is that it is from a few years ago and things have 
changed a lot. She explained that it will always be a moving target and that they need to establish what 
the issue is.  

Mr. Rutherford added that anything less than $230,000 is not livable or marketable. He explained that in 
reality no one is going to be buying a house for $225,000 North of Lovingston.   

Mr. Reed noted that one of the things that has contributed to housing problems is geography and that 
he would like to see steep slopes addressed in relation to housing. Ms. Redfearn explained that it is 
addressed in the cultural resources chapter with soil suitability.  

Ms. Proulx noted that the unemployment rate is low. Mr. Rutherford noted that it is the natural number 
of people changing jobs. He added that he would love to know how much the workforce has changed. 
He explained that he imagines that the workforce would have shrunk due to the aging population. Mr. 
Rutherford added that they have to import 2100 people into Nelson. Ms. Proulx noted that she thinks 
the number of people that live and work in Nelson has gone up. Ms. Allen added that Covid-19 would 
have increased these numbers. Mr. Musso noted that these numbers likely reflect pre-covid data. Mr. 
Parr added that improved internet access is adding to this as well. Mr. Hauschner asked if they could see 
data for the change in labor force by industry. Mr. Reed asked who Craft USA Holders is. It was noted 
that it is Devils Backbone. 



 

 
6 

 

Ms. Redfearn reviewed the vision statement. Mr. Reed explained that Nelson County is a destination 
when viewed from the outside but if you live there it’s a community. He added that it is an economic 
destination. Ms. Allen noted that they are trying to grow from within. Ms. Proulx added that a lot of 
people have been here for generations and didn’t necessarily come here for the natural beauty. She 
noted that she came because she could find a cheaper piece of property. Ms. Redfearn summarized that 
the word community is preferred and that people live there and the county is open to all. Ms. Redfearn 
then reviewed the big ideas that were identified.  



 

 
7 

 

Ms. Redfearn reviewed a pyramid breaking down the elements of the plan.  

  



 

 
8 

 

 

Mr. Musso reviewed the Chapter 6 goal.  

Mr. Rutherford noted that agriculture showed up as 9th out of the 13 industries listed. He assumed that 
it might be somewhat due to migrant workers. Ms. Proulx added that the wineries are clearly 
agricultural and they are still coming into the County. Mr. Rutherford added that Agriculture is not going 
to be like it once was. Mr. Musso noted that the term agritourism generally means wineries and 
breweries. Ms. Proulx explained that the vineyards themselves where the grapes are grown would be 
agriculture. Ms. Redfearn clarified that agriculture has many forms.  Mr. Parr added that agritourism 
does include farm markets, pick your own pumpkins, corn mazes, etc. Mr. Hauschner added that office 
workers and people that work on the administrative side of things would not fall under agriculture. 



 

 
9 

 

 

Mr. Musso reviewed the Chapter 6 Big Ideas focus areas.  

Mr. Rutherford noted that purchasing of development rights has never happened in Nelson County. Mr. 
Rutherford noted that he doesn’t want to miss out on incentivizing the replacement of housing stock. 
Mr. Reed noted that it is a tool to protect areas. Mr. Rutherford noted that Gladstone, Shipman, and 
Elma are locations they might want to advocate for. Ms. Proulx noted that no one would be forced into 
it and that it is a tool that can be used for various developments or individuals. 

Mr. Musso discussed climate migration and how people are moving from cities to places like Nelson. He 
explained that Nelson is a SolSmart Community. Ms. Redfearn added that the text that accompanies the 
focus areas is the baseline information for each of the chapters. She added that the text is then 
supported by a series of strategies that say “Where do we go from here?” 



 

 
10 

 

 



 

 
11 

 



 

 
12 

 



 

 
13 

 



 

 
14 

 

Strategies 



 

 
15 

 

18. Mr. Musso asked if the group was happy with Land Use Taxation as it is now. The consensus was that 
they were. Mr. Musso asked if they want to make it easier for land owners to get land use. Mr. Parr 
explained that he thinks the 5-acre minimum makes sense. Mr. Rutherford noted that he’s had no 
complaints of people unable to get land use. Ms. Redfearn asked if they should condense 18 into 17 or 
change 18 to say “maintain.” It was decided to keep 18 with the change to “maintain.” 

30. Ms. Bishop explained that they haven’t had to utilize the solar ordinance yet and that the 
topography is not suited to projects of that scale. Mr. Harman added that they should prioritize rooftops 
vs agricultural land. Ms. McGarry added that clear cutting for solar farms should be discouraged as well.   

Mr. Rutherford noted that developers buy creek credits in Nelson and that it ties up the land forever. He 
explained that affluent developers can buy good land in Nelson and stick it in a use where it can’t be 
used. Ms. Bishop explained that when people are applying for conservation easements they can reach 
out to see if the Comprehensive Plan supports it. She added that they can identify where the prime 
agricultural land is. 

Ms. McGarry explained that the County has already completed strategy 19 for this year and will 
continue to do so. Ms. Redfearn explained that they could change the wording to say “continue.” Mr. 
Musso explained that the reason for prioritizing the strategies is to help formulate the timeline of how 
they will accomplish goals for the near future. Ms. Bishop noted that strategies 1, 2, 3, and 4 are 
priorities for her.  

26. Mr. Harman asked how the flood plain impacts land use. Ms. Bishop noted that there is a layer on 
the GIS that shows flood plain.  

13 and 14. Mr. Hauschner noted that he would like to see discussion for improved walkability of 
population centers like Lovingston. He added that he would like to see mitigation of sound adjacent to 
Route 29. Ms. Redfearn noted that in the Land Use Chapter they will talk about buffers. 

24. Ms. Bishop noted that strategy #24 is important for Lovingston revitalization. Mr. Rutherford noted 
that they should take what they can get.  

Mr. Hauschner asked about environmental remediation. Ms. Redfearn noted that they do include water 
quality remediation in terms of wells and tanks but haven’t included the larger projects.  Mr. Hauschner 
noted that he would like to explore improving education and resources in regards to soil and water 
testing for the population.  

29. Ms. Bishop explained that this strategy is quickly achievable.   



 

 
16 

 



 

 
17 

 



 

 
18 

 

 



 

 
19 

 



 

 
20 

 



 

 
21 

 

 



 

 
22 

 

 

Strategies  

8. Mr. Musso explained that this could include acquiring a Fire Marshall and state standards. Mr. 
Rutherford explained that it’s important but that he doesn’t know if a Fire Marshall would be very 
popular and that they already have a regional one. Ms. Allen noted that the priority should be on fire 
and EMS response to calls. Ms. Bishop clarified that we have a state Fire Marshall and that the 
responsibility generally falls on the Building Official currently. Ms. Allen added that when people look at 
moving into a community they look into a few different things. She explained that the younger 
populations are looking at schools and the older populations are looking at EMS and fire response. Mr. 
Rutherford noted that a conversation about paid fire would be controversial. Ms. Proulx explained that 
having paid responders saved her husband’s life. Mr. Parr explained that fire and rescue are separate. 
Ms. Allen explained that a lot of rural counties will tackle rescue first and then fire. Mr. Hauschner noted 
that with an aging population they might want to consider further supporting EMS. Mr. Rutherford 
added that they just added another 24-hour crew. Ms. Allen explained that it should be equitable and 
that those in Gladstone should not have to wait much longer than those elsewhere in the County. 

17. Mr. Musso asked about taxation on plastic bags. Ms. Proulx noted that they’ve done it in Albemarle. 
Mr. Musso noted that the whole country is moving in that direction. Mr. Reed noted that the 
Commissioner of revenue lambasted him over bring it up a few years ago in a meeting. Consensus was 
to keep the strategy as is.  



 

 
23 

 

7. Mr. Hauschner added that this should include discussion of drug use, and harm reduction facilities to 
mitigate sheriff’s office involvement. Mr. Hauschner noted that it is a growing problem. Ms. Bishop 
noted that the County is working on drug court as well. Mr. Reed and Mr. Hauschner noted that 
prevention before drug court should be the focus. Ms. Allen noted that this could include education and 
resiliency training. Mr. Rutherford added that it impacts the jail population as well. Mr. Parr added that 
it affects everything. Consensus was in favor of seeing more language in the Comprehensive Plan 
concerning the drug crisis.  

12. Mr. Harman asked if the County is meeting with the Service Authority to establish what demands 
and limitations are. Mr. Musso explained that he met with the Service Authority about capacity.  He 
explained two studies concerning both water supply and water supply shortage. He added that one of 
the studies indicated that water supply will be at its capacity by 2058.  

14. Mr. Musso asked if they needed a strategy specifically for looking for new water resources. Mr. 
Harman noted that there will be more houses in Lovingston and that there is currently not adequate 
water in Lovingston. Consensus was to pursue a water and sewer master plan.  

13. Ms. McGarry noted that the plan should be updated at some point in 2023.  

15. Mr. Harman asked how they would implement this. Mr. Musso explained that this could be 
education. He added that government buildings could be updated.  

22. Ms. Bishop noted that #21 on the spread sheet shown should be a priority.  

Mr. Musso noted that this can be tough due to it being private companies. He added that zoning could 
be changed to be more encouraging. Ms. Allen noted that they have not historically made it difficult for 
towers to come in.  

23(22). Mr. Parr. noted that they should be supportive but responsibility shouldn’t be on BOS. Mr. 
Hauschner mentioned that there are forms of support that they could offer the school board such as 
staffing, funding, buses, and resources.  

24. Mr. Musso noted that the superintendent had identified the idea of consolidating the schools due to 
lack of enrollment. Ms. Allen added that the county could identify communities for after school care. 
She explained that in Nelson older kids get out after younger kids which makes child care more difficult. 
Mr. Parr noted that older kids should be getting out earlier. Ms. Spivey noted that this is not true 
throughout the county. Mr. Musso noted that they would add a strategy to support recreation 
opportunities after school. He also noted that they have a strategy for a Parks and Rec Master Plan. 
Consensus was to keep it. Ms. Bishop added that they can pursue public private partnerships for 
recreation. Ms. Allen noted that they should consider it. Ms. Bishop noted that they are doing 
something similar with the boat ramp at the wayside. Mr. Musso added that the community centers had 
indicated a lack of communication between them. Ms. McGarry noted that they are now regularly 
meeting and plan to bring a report to the Board of Supervisors. Mr. Hauschner noted that they should 
have some standards for public private partnerships.  

31. Ms. Bishop noted that long term care facilities could be included.  

32. Ms. Bishop noted that the strategy should be changed to say “Continue to work with” 



 

 
24 

 

Mr. Hauschner asked if there were a program they could use to introduce walkability to Lovingston. A 
contiguous section of land would need to be established to connect the library to the Food Lion center. 
Mr. Musso noted that this would be included in the transportation chapter.  

Mr. Reed noted that a strategy is needed for the support of Social Services. Mr. Musso noted that it is 
briefly mentioned in the text regarding the new facility but that a direct strategy for support can be 
added. Ms. Allen noted that after hours mental health care is hard to find. Ms. Allen added that DSS 
could be working with Blue Ridge Medical Center to expand their services. Ms. Redfearn noted that the 
strategy could be “Pursue private public partnerships to expand the access to and capacity of social 
service networks in the County”. 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Reed made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:57 PM. Mr. Rutherford seconded the motion.  

Yes:  

Jesse Rutherford 

Thomas Harvey 

David Parr 

Ernie Reed 



 

 
25 

 

 

 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:57 PM. Mr. Harman seconded the motion.  

Yes:  

Robin Hauschner 

Phil Proulx 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

Mike Harman 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:58 PM 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Emily Hjulstrom 

Planner/Secretary, Planning & Zoning 

 

 

 


